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COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  I’m going to call the meeting -- I’m sorry -- the hearing to order.  Just for clarification, we have a hearing on the proposed amendment to Wage Order 9 that includes public transit drivers, under provisions of Section 11 and Section 12, “Meal Periods” and “Rest Periods,” who are currently exempt from the provisions of these sections.  


This is the third hearing on this subject.  Previous hearings were held in San Francisco on October 10th and San Diego on October 15th.  With the conclusion of this hearing -- and, by the way, any parties who wish to speak at the hearing, obviously, may speak -- at the conclusion of this hearing, however, we will segue and go into the public meeting of the IWC, wherein we will consider the formal adoption of the recommendations from the wage board regarding Wage Order 9.  So you have the option of speaking either in the public hearing section or, if you wish, you can speak at the public meeting section.  And, I suppose, if you really want, you could speak at both.


I’ve also been informed, just for those in the audience, that I received a faxed -- the IWC received a fax yesterday from the Environmental Services Shared Governance Council of Santa Barbara Cottage Hospital, which is Item Number 2 on the meeting agenda, requesting that we repeal their petition without prejudice.  And we, obviously, have agreed to that.  They have withdrawn it, I should say -- I’m sorry.


And this morning we’ve been verbally informed -- and help me, Mr. Broad, if I’m wrong on this -- but the UFCW has requested, similarly, to have their petition withdrawn without prejudice.  And we’ve agreed to that.


So Item 2 and Item 3 are off the agenda.  The only thing on the agenda, then, for the meeting is the Wage Order 9.


Having said that, does anyone want to come up and speak as part of the public hearing on Wage Order 9?


MS. ZUHLKE:  Do you want to start?


MR. TURNER:  Sure. 


Good morning, Mr. Chairman and members.


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  I’m sorry.  Just for the record, because I forgot, let the record show we have Commissioners Bosco, Dombrowski, Cremins, and Rose in attendance.


Sorry.  Thank you.


MR. TURNER:  My name is Michael Turner.  I’m here on behalf of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority Board of Directors.  The board was originally opposed to AB 98 and has been opposed to the amendments to the Wage Order Number 9.


We have had concerns with this issue from the beginning because it represents a significant intrusion into the collective bargaining process.  There’s never been a demonstration through the legislative process or through this process that there was ever a problem with the work schedules employed by public transit.  There’s never been a demonstration that operators were going without sufficient breaks and rest periods.  And based on that, we are urging the Commission not to adopt the regulations and authorize an intrusion into the collective bargaining process.


The issue of meal and rest periods has never been an issue in -- or, I should say, in the most recent past, has not been an issue in the collective bargaining process with our operators.  In fact, the operators have demanded schedules, in direct contradiction to the periods provided by the meal and rest periods, in demanding straight runs that provide significantly less breaks so that operators can leave early.


The adoption of the wage order will compromise the collective bargaining process.  It creates an arbitrarily high standard from which employers will be forced to negotiate.


We’re currently in the midst of negotiating with our operators.  And out of respect for the confidentiality of that process, I’d like to refrain from getting into the details of it.  But I would like to say that we are hopeful that we can come to some terms of agreement on this issue with our operators.  We are trying to resolve this process with them now.  But I will say that it’s not helped.  It hasn’t helped clarify the sufficiency of the straight runs and split runs that we currently have.  It hasn’t helped clarify the break provisions we provide for our operators.  In fact, it’s just another wrinkle that we have to get through in the process.  It’s another opportunity for somebody to try and leverage a benefit out of this process.


As I said, we’re hopeful that we will reach agreement.  We’re hopeful that we’ll get this issue resolved with our operators.  But that agreement is only as good as the life of this current contract.  The wage order and AB 98 stay in effect, and it will come up again the next time we have a collective bargaining process.


So, with that, we urge you to exercise caution and not approve the amendments to the wage order and leave it as it is.


Thank you.


MS. ZUHLKE:  Good morning, Mr. Chairman, members of the Commission.  My name is Sue Zuhlke, and I’m with the Orange County Transportation Authority.


When this matter was presented to the Commission on June 15th of 2001, the Commission was asked to consider a request to investigate into the working conditions of public transit drivers and the commercial drivers employed by public agencies with respect to meal and rest breaks.  At that meeting, as well as other meetings, proponents of the amendments testified that meal and rest breaks were necessary because it was a safety issue.


Following testimony on June 15th, Commissioner Bosco requested staff to investigate the public safety aspect and whether meals and rest breaks are fairly bargained for.


At the August 24th, 2001, meeting, IWC staff reported that neither proponents or opponents had submitted any safety data and that the -- this matter was currently being dealt with in the legislature.  The bill that was going through the legislature at that time was AB 1677.  It was vetoed by the governor.  And the governor stated in the veto message that the provisions of this bill concerning meal and rest periods for public transit employees “may be too costly and overly burdensome to public transit agencies.”  We would contend that AB 98 will do this as well.


The Commission can amend the wage order to put public operators or public agencies under those wage orders, but it’s still going to be costly and overly burdensome.  Although you can exempt public transit operators, that exemption, as recommended by the wage board, requires that the collective bargaining agreement expressly provide for meal and rest breaks.


Since no evidence was presented to substantiate the wage board’s recommendation to subject public agencies to meal and rest breaks under Wage Order 9, which are similarly applied to private operators, OCTA staff prepared the chart that was presented to you.  And you can skip all 

-- over all of the colored areas.  And I pretty much highlighted two of the columns, as well as the column in between, that you should really look at.


The safety data was obtained from the most recently available reports from the National Transit Database.  Transit agencies are required to submit this information to FTA that goes into this database.  And we tried to utilized five years’ worth of data, the most current which -- available, which is 2001, back to 1997.  Some of the agencies only had four years of data available or recorded within the NTD.


During testimony, proponents have argued that fatigue is the number one cause of collisions.  If you look at -- and what we did was, we -- we tried to select public agencies and private agencies that were similar in size, as well as near each other in locality, so that we could get a closer comparison, apples to apples.  Then we took the data and we normalized it based on a million annual actual vehicle revenue miles, a million annual passenger trips, and a million annual passenger miles.  In every case, the number of collisions that occurred by the agencies utilizing a private contractor were anywhere from 1.6 to 2 times greater than those of the public agencies.  Safety does not appear to be a factor in this.


We also looked at passenger safety by comparing -- looking at both collisions and non-collisions.  The non-collisions data in the gray area would be passenger injuries.  Okay.  When you look at that, statistically there is no difference between the private and public agencies in most cases.  So safety does not seem to be an issue in this matter.


Proponents have also stated that even though all commercial drivers of public agencies will be covered by this wage order, OCTA and L.A. County MTA are the only agencies opposed.  I’ve provided you with copies of 11 letters.  They’re opposition letters to AB 98 of other agencies that are opposed to this measure as well.  These 11 operators, that include L.A. County MTA, OCTA, the City of Arcata, Antelope Valley Transit Authority, Morongo Basin Transit Authority, Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District, Riverside Transit Agency, City of Folsom, City of Gardena, Merced County Transit, and even Foothill Transit, who utilizes a private operator, carry over half of the passengers on buses in the State of California.


Proponents have also said that all public agencies that have commercial drivers would be covered by this.  And that is not a true statement.  This wage order is for the transportation industry.  It will not subject municipalities or the county or other special districts that employ commercial drivers, because they are not in the transportation industry.  So it is narrowly applied to the transit or transportation industry.


Proponents have also argued that a similar exemption already exists for the construction industry, as addressed in Wage Order 16.  This exemption does not require meal and rest breaks to be expressly provided for in those collective bargaining agreements.  It only requires that they have a collective bargaining agreement that addresses wages, hours of work, and working conditions of employees and provide premium wage rates for overtime hours worked and an hourly pay of not less than 30 percent more than minimum wage.  Those are the exact same requirements that our collective bargaining agreements have.


There is currently a system that exists to negotiate meal and rest periods.  I won’t repeat all of the information that Michael just gave you on collective bargaining.  Ours is similar.  That system works.  Golden Gate Transit has had meal periods provided for a number of years.  San Mateo Transit, who has been a strong proponent of amending the wage order, negotiated meal periods in their last collective bargaining agreement.  The last time OCTA bargained with their union, there were 112 issues brought to the table.  None of them dealt with meal and rest breaks.  They did, however, ask for more straight runs, where there are no breaks, so that they can get off earlier.  And they asked for some additional recovery time, which was provided them.  And that’s what they desire.


Proponents have stated that the only evidence that’s needed, essentially, for this amendment to the wage order is everybody needs to eat and take a bathroom break.  Agreeable, but there are a number of agencies and professions that are exempt from meal and rest breaks.  And that is no reason to go ahead and put public transit operators under those same requirements.


Personally, I would love to be put under the wage order as a professionally exempt employee.  I wouldn’t have to worry about commuting 30 miles one way to work, because I would be able to collect my penalty pay for each meal and rest break I missed.  That penalty pay for OCTA would be over $7 million, and the cost to implement these requirements would be over $4 million annually.


Finally, what I would like to say is that at the June 15th, 2001, IWC meeting, Commissioner Bosco stated:  “This is clearly the camel’s nose under the tent.  If we get started on public employees, whether it’s bus drivers or who it is, we’re going to end up with firefighters and everybody else.”


In accordance with Labor Code Section 1182, we respectfully request the IWC reject the recommended amendments to Wage Order 9, as there is no substantial evidence to support the amendments.


Thank you.


COMMISSIONER BOSCO:  Could I ask a question?


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  No.


(Laughter)


COMMISSIONER BOSCO:  Well, I’m curious about the issue -- first of all, thank you for the safety information.  It’s very interesting and well presented, I think.


I’m interested in this kind of what might be a conflict between employees that would like to just have straight time and get off early and forget about all the lunch periods or meal periods and the provisions that we’re considering.  Are you saying that a collective bargaining agreement could not accommodate both?  I understand that it would have to provide for meal and rest periods, but isn’t there some way that through, you know, reasonable negotiations, both of those things could be accommodated?


MR. TURNER:  I think our perspective is that if it’s an issue -- if there’s an issue with an employee’s work hours and meal breaks, it should just be left to the process.  The state shouldn’t mandate a work hour or rest provision based on a number of hours because it doesn’t work with the kind of services we operate.  


If there’s a question about the adequacy of our breaks, if they should come -- if operators should have straight runs or split runs, that should just be left to the collective bargaining process.  By trying to impose a strict schedule, you create a situation where an employee can try and leverage a bonus pay based on a schedule that’s provided through the wage order.


COMMISSIONER BOSCO:  Well, let me ask Marguerite.  I don’t know to what extent you’ve analyzed this, Marguerite, but --


MS. STRICKLIN:  I just got it.


COMMISSIONER BOSCO:  Pardon?


MS. STRICKLIN:  I just got it, so --


COMMISSIONER BOSCO:  Oh, okay.


I’m confused as to what could be bargained away and still comply with this.  I mean -- but thank you.  I’ll maybe ask the next speaker too.


MS. ZUHLKE:  Thank you.


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  Tim, did you have a question?


COMMISSIONER CREMINS:  Maybe Barry can clarify it.


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  Maybe you folks could rebut this?


MR. BROAD:  Mr. Chairman and members, let me address that question directly.


First of all, let me also say that --


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  Can you please identify yourself?


MR. BROAD:  Oh.  Barry Broad, on behalf of the Teamsters and the Amalgamated Transit Union.


Let me, first of all, say that I’m sorry that we’re in a situation where the MTA feels so -- they have to be so disingenuous.  In fact, in anticipation of this regulation passing, they have in their current negotiation with their drivers reached agreement totally on how to do this within the confines of the regulation.  And he should have just come up here and admitted that rather than pretended it hadn’t happened.  And it didn’t involve any substantial problem.  They’ve got other issues on the table; this isn’t one of them.  This is a red herring.  


What the wage board agreed to was something that in collective bargaining would provide these employers, and we even suggested language that we would urge you to adopt on the Statement of Basis to indicate that with respect to the time, place, and manner of these breaks, that the parties be given maximum flexibility to negotiate how they would be taken.  


Now, when they talk about relief times or other kind of times between runs, that’s when you would schedule the breaks.  If they want to do on-duty meal periods, if they want to arrange some system at the end of the day where people leave early on -- you know, for 30 minutes, on a 30-minute break or whatever, they can negotiate any of that within the confines of this regulation.


All we’re suggesting is that the -- their collective bargaining agreement, in order to meet the test of an exemption, which is what we’re talking about, from the regulation, would have to address explicitly meals and rest breaks, when you take them, and so forth.


San Mateo, in anticipation of this several years ago, sat down with their union and negotiated it.  Golden Gate has had it for several years because that employer sat down and negotiated it.  This is just no big deal.  And that’s why four fifths of the wage board agreed to do this.


We have -- and I have to commend especially Doug Barton, who’s the attorney that represented a number of the transit operators -- after our meeting in January when Commissioner Bosco said, “Gee whiz, I just don’t understand how something like intelligent people like you can’t sit down and figure out how to work this out.”  We sat down, and we worked it out.  And we went to the wage board, and we came up with something that worked for both sides.  And we both made concessions after two or three years of beefing about this thing.  And we came to an agreement, and the wage board adopted it.


And frankly, if, in the middle of the contentious negotiations that involve a strike by another union in Los Angeles, they can reach accommodation in Los Angeles over this very issue, in these circumstances that exist today, then certainly these other transit agencies can figure out how to do this.


With respect to safety data and accident causation, anyone who is familiar with commercial vehicle accidents understands that fatigue is the number one underlying cause of accidents.  It’s not always easy to demonstrate, but numerous studies have showed it to be an underlying causation factor.  A direct causation factor would be something like running a red light, speeding, and so forth.  And any of you who have ever driven a vehicle understands that when you’re tired, that’s when you make those kind of mistakes and accidents occur.  That doesn’t mean there’s any simple way to say that tiredness was the cause.  But certainly tiredness is a major issue among commercial drivers because they drive at least 10 hours a day, actual driving time, is the maximum amount of driving they can do in these kind of vehicles.


I believe that what we have done here is bend over backwards to figure out a way to just take care of this problem.  And that’s all that’s intended here.  This is not a run on anybody’s bank account.  There’s just nothing to it.


I will tell you a little anecdotal story.  I was over the -- which I reported to Commissioner Rose in San Francisco -- I was at the Holiday Inn to go give a little talk.  And a bus driver pulled her bus up at the curb, you know, by the hotel and was running in to the hotel.  And when she came out, I introduced myself to her and said, you know, “I represent you, and I’m kind of wondering, is this your bathroom break?”  This is an RT driver, regional transit driver, in Sacramento.  And she said, “Oh, yeah.”  And she was just like exhausted and, you know, tired and sort of stressed out.  And she said -- and this was in late June -- and she said, “Well, at least now I can stop here and run in and get this bathroom break.  I mean, they don’t exactly know that I’m doing it, but at least I can do it, because when the kids are in school on my route, I don’t have any time to do this, and I just have to hold it.  And it gets really uncomfortable and it’s really miserable.  And you know -- you know, bless your heart if you’re trying to take care of this thing and get these things scheduled.”


So, really, all it is is a scheduling issue.  You just make the schedule, give people enough time that there’s relief points where they can stop, get out of the bus, go to the bathroom at a predesignated place that they figure out, and it’s -- it’s taken care of.


Earlier on, these same opponents have raised the issue that legally, the Industrial Welfare Commission could not create a collective bargaining exemption type of language that the wage board agreed to.  In response to that, and together with the transit employers, we jointly put together a bill, AB 98, which the governor signed, that says the IWC, if it adopts a regulation pertaining to meals and rest breaks for commercial drivers, that it has the authority to create a collective bargaining exemption.


So there is no legal issue, there is no moral issue, there’s no nothing.  Everyone agrees -- and that’s the evidence that’s uncontroverted -- that workers need to be able to go to the bathroom.  When you work in an office setting, it’s very easy to go down the hall and go to the bathroom.  It’s just not a difficult problem in a lot of work settings, especially the work settings where the proponents work.  But if you’re driving a commercial vehicle and you do not have the freedom to just go to the bathroom at any time, it is a major issue for people.  And whether it came up or didn’t come up in collective bargaining, we can argue about for a long time.  But our folks definitely brought it up and were always told, “We don’t have to give you this because the IWC doesn’t require it -- require it of public entities.  And therefore, if you want to schedule bathroom breaks and so forth, you’re going to have to give up something.”  In the case of Orange County, where they said they got more relief points or longer relief points, that was their way of dealing with this.  And that’s the way they’ll deal with it in the future if this regulation is passed.


And so, I would just urge you strongly to pass the regulation.  I think we’ve done our homework and it’s time to do this.


Thank you.


MS. STRICKLIN:  Excuse me, Mr. Broad.  I have a question.


MR. BROAD:  Yes.


MS. STRICKLIN:  Earlier there was a statement about certain commercial vehicles not being a part of the transportation industry.  What’s your take on that?


MR. BROAD:  Well, the question of who -- who is and who isn’t covered by a wage order, I guess we could argue about.  But it seems to me that if a municipality or a -- a government agency has an operating unit that is in -- that is a transportation industry unit, then certainly they would be covered by Wage Order 9.  That would be my argument.


It may be that in a circumstance that -- where they are not, that -- where they don’t have that kind of a unit, where they have one bus operated by a park district or something like that, they could -- they might make the argument that they would not be covered by this.  So, I would assume, for example, if a school district had a fleet of school buses that -- that were operated by a division of that entity, that they would be covered by Wage Order 9.


And if they want to have that legal argument, I suppose we can have that legal argument.  We petitioned to change Wage Order 9.  We didn’t petition to change every wage order.  And our assumption being that we were going to be dealing with essentially fleets of vehicles.


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  Response?


MR. TURNER:  Yes.  Thank you.


What I’d first like to say is reasonable people have dealt with this issue, and reasonable people have agreed.  It’s documented in the -- in this breakdown between split runs and straight runs in our collective bargaining agreement.  When operators enter negotiations with our agency, what they ask for is an increase in straight runs.  That’s in direct contradiction to concerns of fatigue.


If there’s questions about disingenuousness around here, the question needs to be directed at why an agency who expresses concern for fatigue in operators would demand schedules that require the operators to drive for longer periods of time.  That creates fatigue, if anything.  The split runs allow for shorter driving time in the morning, breaks, shorter -- and then a shorter driving period in the afternoon.  That allows for rest periods.  That allows for meal periods.  And if that’s the concern, then we can put more of those in our collective bargaining agreements, and we’ll have plenty of rest periods and plenty of meal periods.  But that’s not what our operators have asked for.  In the collective bargaining process, they’ve asked for more straight runs.  That allows less break times, less meal periods.


Another point that I’m concerned about is representations of anecdotal evidence that there’s some kind of pervasive problem in the public transit industry.  It’s not the case.  There has been no testimony that operators are going without breaks, unable to go to the bathroom, and are not provided an opportunity to eat.  There’s never been any testimony that that’s a pervasive problem in our industry.  And without that kind of evidence submitted to you, or ever submitted to the wage board, we feel there’s no basis for the wage board’s recommendation.


I am very cautious about the process going on in Los Angeles.  As I said in my testimony, we are hopeful we can reach an agreement.  We are hopeful we will come to a conclusion with our operators.  But if we’re going to get into what happens in the L.A. negotiating process, what happened in our negotiations was that the union representing our operators began the negotiations before this process was concluded by saying, “Tell us how you’re going to comply with the wage order.”  They didn’t ask if our collective bargaining agreement expressly provides for rest periods.  They didn’t ask how were we going to define language that says we can keep what we currently have in our contract, because we considered our previous contract to expressly provide meal and rest periods.  Their interpretation is that we had to comply with the wage hour and a half-hour break after certain hours of work.


All it’s done is just open a process for somebody to come in and try to negotiate a new benefit.  It didn’t help the process.  It didn’t end up getting us to any point or deal with any substantive issues with whether or not our operators are provided sufficient meal and rest breaks.  And without any kind of evidence like that, we just feel there’s no basis for permitting the regulation.


COMMISSIONER ROSE:  If I may, are you saying there is an agreement or there is not agreement?


MR. TURNER:  There is -- we have reached agreement with our operators on the breakdown between split runs and straight runs historically with our contracts.


COMMISSIONER ROSE:  I’m talking about meal and rest breaks.


MR. TURNER:  This is an issue in our negotiations.  There has been language prepared for the current contract to deal with this issue.  It is part of an entire collective bargaining agreement that has yet to be signed.  We are hopeful that we’ve reached an agreement.  I’m not prepared at this point to say that any of those issues have been successfully resolved until the entire collective bargaining agreement is signed.


MR. JONES:  Mr. Chairman, if I may, J. P. Jones, with the United Transportation Union.  We represent the drivers at the MTA.


I want to clear up some mischaracterizations that have been made by the MTA representative.


We have never as an organization requested additional straight runs on the MTA in any collective bargaining procedure.  It has always been the management side at collective bargaining that has asked for additional straight runs.  And that is the case here.  The issue before us at MTA is additional straight run requests by management, not by the union.  That’s number one.


Number two, in relation to the straight runs, they still have what is known as recovery time within those runs.  And the recovery time is anticipated to be the time which will address the breaks and meal period in the -- in the collective bargaining process when certain of these runs become -- become in question.  


Insofar as what the union did or didn’t do, I find it interesting that this gentleman was not at the table.  I was.  I know exactly what we said.  We didn’t say anything about, “Tell how you’re going to do application of the order.”  We simply said we’re willing to discuss it, we’re willing to negotiate it, simply, as the -- as the wage order requires.  And we have.  And the issue has been addressed.


Now, we can talk about, you know, what -- what is or isn’t going to happen.  But the bottom line is that they have agreed to a concept in which this wage order is identified and the provisions of it are made applicable to the agreement.  And true, it is a -- it is a side agreement to the overall agreement, but it has been what they “TA signed,” temporarily agreed to by both sides.  So the characterization the MTA is making here is simply not accurate.


Insofar as the mechanism for identifying no meals or breaks on the MTA, these -- these requests have been ignored in the past, and they -- simply because, as Mr. Broad indicated, they’re not required to do it, they’re not going to do it.  And so to the extent that the only thing available to the -- to the organization and the drivers at the time is the recovery time within the -- within the current collective bargaining agreement for the straight runs, and for the non-straight runs, quite frankly, it is -- it is this mechanism that we used to incorporate the order into the collective bargaining agreement.


So I just wanted to clear the record for that.


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  Any other questions?


MS. BANE:  No.  But I would like to indicate that Mr. Jones also testified in San Francisco, and he testified in some detail to this very matter, and it will be incorporated -- substantially the same, perhaps a little more detail right now.  And we had asked if he could disclose to us what specific agreement there was, and, of course, he indicated that at this moment in time, it is still confidential, but substantively, it has been addressed.


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  Does anyone else wish to speak at the -- during the public hearing portion on this issue?


(No response)


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  Seeing no one, we’ll close the public hearing and call the public meeting to order.


And again, the record will show that Commissioners Bosco, Dombrowski, Rose, and Cremins are present.


And for those who may have -- who may have come in late, we announced earlier that both Item 2, the petition regarding meal and break periods from the Santa Barbara Cottage Hospital, and Item Number 3, the UFCW petition requesting review of Order 14, have both been withdrawn without prejudice.  So the only item on the agenda for this public meeting is the formal review of now Wage Order 9 and potential adoption by the Commission.


Having said that, the floor is now open for others or if individuals want to come up and testify further.


Just please identify yourself for the transcript.


MR. SHAW:  Good morning, Mr. Chairman, members.  Joshua Shaw, executive director of the California Transit Association.  Our association represents local public transit operators, specifically transit management and the local elected or appointed officials who are seated on the governing boards of the transit systems.


And I simply wanted to make a statement to you substantially like that which I made to you last time you met, when you decided to go ahead and order the three public hearings.  And the statement is our association is in support of the proposed amendments to the wage order, as recommended to you by the wage board, through an action of our executive committee.  That’s the bottom line.


Obviously, it’s apparent that there are a number of transit operators who are not in support, including Orange County and L.A., which sit on our executive committee.  I want to acknowledge that very clearly.  In fact, our association, I would say, probably every transit manager in the state would be opposed to the strict imposition of the rest and meal breaks contained in the wage order for the rest of the transportation industry.  In fact, we’ve more or less enjoyed the exemption, the 100 percent exemption, for years.  And we fought against the elimination of that exemption and the strict imposition, and we would continue to oppose those.  


But I think it’s fair to say our executive committee had to weigh the fact that our labor partners indicated very clearly to us that they would continue to try to fight for elimination of that exemption.  We had to weigh digging in on that fight versus some sort of compromise.  And we viewed the ultimate product of the wage board as an appropriate compromise, in light of possibly losing on the fight to try to save the current exemption, thinking that that would be a worse fate than the -- than the wage order limits that are before.


So, again, we commend those to you for your support and action.


Thank you.


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  Thank you.


Mr. Gusman.


MR. GUSMAN:  Mr. Chairman, members of the Commission, Shane Gusman, on behalf of the Amalgamated Transit Union.  I just wanted to make one brief point.


I think it was mentioned by some of the opponents that there’s been no evidence of any -- no evidence brought by the proponents of this wage order that there’s any problem that the drivers are experiencing.  And that’s not quite correct.  


Just two days ago in San Diego, we had a number of drivers appear, and one of them spoke on behalf of the drivers in San Diego.  And that driver talked about the fact that most drivers, at least in his local, because they don’t get breaks to go to the restroom, experience kidney infections at least once a year.  I’d say that’s a significant health problem for the drivers.


I know that drivers often experience back problems because they don’t get a chance to get out of a bus, take a break, stretch.  These are significant health issues for these drivers, and I don’t think that they should be dismissed.


Thank you.


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  Marguerite, what’s the code section?  I’m trying to find the language for the “substantial evidence.” Well, right now, my understanding is that we’ve had this adopted by more than two-thirds vote.


MS. STRICKLIN:  Right.


MS. ZUHLKE:  That would be Labor Code Section 1182.


MS. STRICKLIN:  Using the language that says “unless there’s no substantial evidence”?


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  Yeah, that’s what I’m looking for.  “Unless it finds there’s no substantial evidence to support such recommendations.”


MS. STRICKLIN:  Right.


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  Okay.


Go ahead.  I’m sorry.


MS. ZUHLKE:  Thank you.  Sue Zuhlke again, from Orange County Transportation Authority.


Just in closing, Mr. Gusman just reported that there were some operators in San Diego that testified in support.  One of the gentlemen was from Long Beach Transit who demanded his 30-minute meal break, not five 5-minute breaks, not 30 minutes at the end of the day, as Mr. Broad has just indicated, just give them 30 minutes at the end of the day.  That’s not going to help with fatigue matters that he’s indicating is a peril.


The other gentleman that Mr. Gusman just mentioned is actually from ATC Van Com.  They’re a private agency.  They are not public employees.  And that’s an issue that needs to be addressed in another manner.


As far as kidney infections, we get them all the time.  I’m in that office, down from the back room, in which, you know, anecdotally, Barry -- excuse me -- Mr. Broad talked about the bus driver.  A similar situation happened just this past week, on Tuesday.  A big SUV pulls into a 7-Eleven.  A woman comes running out, desperate to use the restroom, because “I had been in meetings for four hours and had to get somebody to the airport.”  It happens to all of us.


So, in closing, I would just like to say, you know, unless there has been workers’ comp injuries submitted that there has been substantial evidence showing that there are injuries occurring to these individuals, it’s not a safety issue.


I agree that fatigue probably is the number one cause of collisions.  But the evidence that I presented to you was to show that collisions are happening more with the private agencies that are enjoying these meal and rest breaks than with the public agencies.


Thank you.


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  Commissioner Rose, you’ve been at these hearings --


COMMISSIONER ROSE:  Yes.


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  -- all three of them.  I still come back to the question of has substantial evidence been presented to support the recommendations of the wage board.


COMMISSIONER ROSE:  And I believe there has been, in San Francisco, San Diego, and here.


MS. STRICKLIN:  And I would point out that it’s not just from the public hearings after the proposed recommendations were submitted for public hearing.  It’s everything that you’ve heard from the beginning of this process, when it was first brought to the Commission.  So you can look at that entire record.


MS. BANE:  Including what went to the wage 

board.


MS. STRICKLIN:  Yeah, including what went to the wage board.


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  Is it your legal opinion it’s supported?


MS. STRICKLIN:  I don’t want to give you that --


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  Okay.


Anyone else wish to testify?


MR. RODRIGUEZ:  (Not using microphone)  I have something.


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  Marguerite, maybe you want to --


MR. RODRIGUEZ:  (Not using microphone)  Excuse me.  Back here.


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  Okay.  Please come forward.  Please come forward and identify yourself.


MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Good morning.  My name is Ron Rodriguez.  I’m secretary-treasurer of Amalgamated Transit Union 1027 in Fresno, California.  I also have been a bus driver for the past 24 years.


I would like to speak in favor of the bill presently before you.  As I said, I’ve been driving for twenty-five years.  I believe it gives the local unions a great deal of bargaining power at the table, which Fresno is about to go into session in March.  It gives us leeway to bargain for something that Fresno would like to have, as far as -- as far as the lunch and break period.  We are somewhat against the lunch and break period, but we would like -- like I say, it gives us bargaining power at the table.  So as far as Fresno is concerned, we are for this bill, and I hope you approve it.


Thank you.


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  Thank you.


Anyone else wish to testify?


COMMISSIONER BOSCO:  Maybe I should --


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  You’ve already been quoted a number of times on this.


COMMISSIONER BOSCO:  Yeah.  But I’m not going to say anything.


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  Yes, sir.


MR. STEITZ:  My name is Rick Steitz.  I’m president of the Amalgamated Transit Union in the City of Fresno.


I have no concern about bargaining power at the table, like Mr. Rodriguez did.  I want to talk to you as a bus driver, that I’ve been for 22 years.  To me -- what I will describe is the terrible conditions under we’re subject to in driving a bus.


I’ve been driving a bus for 22 years.  You drive eight hours a day usually.  When I first started, I drove a split shift, of usually about four hours on and then maybe two hours off, and then you’d drive for three hours.  In Fresno, those split shifts have basically gone away.  We’re faced with now an eight-hour day or more.  The limit of driving a bus is ten hours behind the wheel.  In the City of Fresno, it’s not unusual for you to drive four, five hours straight, without a break.  What they call a run guide is that, on paper, there -- there may be an indicated rest, of maybe three or four minutes at the end of the line.  In reality, that -- that does not exist.  Usually the traffic congestion, the passenger load, you’re in that seat for four to five hours.


Finally, because of the calls of nature, you have to make time to go to the restroom.  It’s not unusual for supervisors to question your use of the restroom.  You may be running late at the time.  But it’s either stopping for a normal bodily function or to soil yourself and keep driving.


I want to speak in favor of this bill.  It’s going to make the transit workers’ job a lot easier.  We don’t have access to restrooms on the bus.  We’re in some jeopardy in the City of Fresno, that I can speak to, of being disciplined for even falling farther behind or holding the line up.  Stopping and going to the bathroom may hold you up for five minutes, and you have -- you have transfers to make.  And people complain, “Well, I need to get to the next bus.”  I can understand their concerns, but I’d ask that you people understand the plight of a bus driver, that there are normal bodily functions that are necessary.  It’s a normal function.  We’re not machines.  It’s not an easy job.  And I ask you to please consider that in making your decision.


You know, if you’re -- if you’re a construction worker, if you’re an office worker, you can, you know, take time out, walk down the hall or walk across the field and use a portable restroom or a nice sanitary restroom in an office building.  But those things aren’t afforded to bus drivers, at least none that I’m -- I’m familiar with.


In Fresno, you know, there are work injuries.  I’m not an expert, but I can tell you there’s a lot of bladder infections, kidney problems.  And I’m not a doctor either.  But in speaking with my members, a lot of these things are attributable to not being available to use public restrooms in a timely manner.  I -- I ask you to consider this issue before you, and I hope that you do the -- what I would consider the best thing.  Give what all the other workers in the State of California, or most of them, have, the ability to use the restroom in a timely manner.  Give that to us.  Give us a rest -- a rest time that we’re not going to be disciplined for.  Give us time to have a decent meal, a time to eat lunch or breakfast or whatever it may, depending on the hours that you work.  I ask for your indulgence on this and for your consideration in this -- this proceeding.


Thank you.


COMMISSIONER BOSCO:  Can I ask a question?


MR. STEITZ:  Sure.


COMMISSIONER BOSCO:  I’m going to ask this, even though I’ve been holding back from asking it right from the beginning of our hearings, which were a long time ago.  What do you do exactly?  I mean, you’ve been a bus driver for 22 years.  I assume you have some regular routes.  Do you just like find a certain public place or a store or a 7-Eleven or gas station that you know the owner will let you run in and run back out?  Is that -- I mean, what do most bus 

drivers --


MR. STEITZ:  I can speak to only what transpires in the City of Fresno.  We’ve made attempts to work with the City of Fresno, and it hasn’t fallen on completely deaf ears, but there are designated businesses where we have permission to use the restrooms.  They’re scattered throughout the city on different routes.


Accidents do happen and people do soil themselves because they can’t make it to a rest stop.  There are some businesses -- and I don’t think they have anything against bus drivers or whatever -- but they prefer the public not to use their restrooms, and they don’t allow you to use them.


COMMISSIONER BOSCO:  But, may I ask, is this sort of an informal thing that you sort of scope out for yourself, or it something that you get a list of places that you’re welcome to?


MR. STEITZ:  The city does, on occasion, provide you with a list where they’ve contacted the businesses and they’ve said, “Yeah, you can use this.”  Some of our routes are two and a half hours long.  And they try and make these designated, available restroom facilities at the end of the line.  Well, things happen in life where -- I mean, you can’t make it.  It’s happened before where you’ve got into a 7-Eleven, and for whatever reason, they said, “No, you can’t use our restroom.”  In an emergency situation, you -- I don’t want to be too graphic, but, you know, you might start looking for a bush.


It’s a normal body function, and the fatigue is -- you know, it gets to you.  And it’s very uncomfortable.


COMMISSIONER CREMINS:  But if you do this while the bus during the middle of a run and maybe occupied, do you tell the occupants of the bus, “Hold on, I’ll be right back” or do you --


MR. STEITZ:  In my personal driving experience --


COMMISSIONER CREMINS:  -- are you allowed to do that?


MR. STEITZ:  -- I tell them, “We’re going to stop for a minute.”  And I take care of whatever I have to do.  It is an inconvenience to them.  You get on the bus and they’re saying, “Hey, what have you been doing?”  And it’s rather embarrassing that you have to explain to somebody that you had to go perform a normal bodily function.  Yeah, I can understand the inconvenience to the passengers.


COMMISSIONER CREMINS:  But you’ve got to make a certain stop so they can make transfers also at a certain time, correct?


MR. STEITZ:  That’s true.


COMMISSIONER CREMINS:  And you’re under a time constraint.


MR. STEITZ:  We’re under time constraints.  And I can understand the public’s urgency of wanting to get to where they’re going.  But people need to understand that bus drivers are not machines.  We have bodily functions that need to be taken care of.  And what expense, I -- you know 

-- we’re kind of at a disadvantage.  You can’t just put your laptop down or your pencil down and just come back five or ten minutes later.  There needs to be designated times, time allowed during the day where this can take place.  I mean, it’s not a lot of fun waking up at five o’clock in the morning and start driving a bus at 5:30, driving for maybe nine and a half hours and not having a chance to have something to eat.  You know, in Fresno, the rules and regulations are you’re not supposed to eat or drink anything on the bus.  And I can understand that.  But it takes its toll on a person’s health, it takes its toll on their fatigue, and it takes a toll on the different organs of the body that need to be relieved at times.


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  Anything else?


COMMISSIONER CREMINS:  You’re not even allowed to drink water, for instance, on -- while you’re driving?


MR. STEITZ:  You are not to drink or eat anything on the bus.


MS. BANE:  Could I clarify something, sir?  When we hear this testimony, it’s spoken of as anecdotal, which means sort of like you hear one story at a time.  When you’re speaking and you’re saying that you hear from members, are you talking about -- how many members are you talking about?  And is it a general -- how many people are complaining?  Is it just -- just you, just one or two others?


MR. STEITZ:  In Fresno, my organization has close to 300 members, part of which have the benefit, because I represent two different entities -- one’s a private concern, and one is a public concern.  The largest one is the public concern.  The private concern is a paratransit organization, and they have the ability, that there is legislation on the books allowing them rest breaks and lunch breaks.  That is not afforded to public employees at this time.


I’m -- I can’t tell you exactly how many people complain to me.  It’s substantial.  They complain to the employer that, yeah, there may be two or three minutes designated at the end of a route for -- it’s called recovery time.  But when you’re ten minutes late in your route, they expect you to keep going.  They don’t want you to stop and get something to drink off the bus or use restroom facilities.  They expect you to keep going en route because, if you stop, it encumbers the service to the public in trying to get to where they want to get to in a timely manner.


MS. BANE:  Thank you.


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  Yes, sir.


MR. SHAW:  Mr. Chairman, it’s Joshua Shaw, California Transit Association, again.  I’m sorry, but I forgot in my earlier remarks we wanted to mention that we support the proposed draft Statement as to Basis provided to you by the wage board.  I believe they gave you a short, one-paragraph additional details on how they thought some of the terms in the proposed amendments would be defined.  And we didn’t hear anything this morning about how or whether you might, in fact, adopt the Statement as to Basis, and we would like to see that read into your record or otherwise adopted at some other official hearing, because we do support that additional definition.


Thank you.


MS. BANE:  I don’t believe it’s included in the packet, but we’re -- we have the intention of incorporating it as recommended by the wage board into the Statement of the Basis, which will be presented to you at a later date.


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  Any other testimony?


Sir?  Sir?  Sir --


MR. STEITZ:  Yes.


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  She needs your --


MR. STEITZ:  Oh.


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  Mr. Cooper.


MR. COOPER:  Peter Cooper, California Labor Federation.


Just for the record, we have already testified in support of the changes.  And we just want to reiterate the importance of making this change to this wage order.


Thank you.


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  Okay.  Any other testimony?


(No response)


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  Procedure-wise, assuming someone makes a motion and second to adopt -- we adopt the proposed amendments and then what do we do about the Statement to the Basis?


MS. STRICKLIN:  Give direction to the staff to include that into the Statement of Basis.


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  Include that all in one motion?


MS. STRICKLIN:  You can take two separate --


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  Let’s just do it as one.


MS. STRICKLIN:  Okay.


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  Do I have a motion?


COMMISSIONER BOSCO:  I move that we adopt the amendments to Wage Order 9.


COMMISSIONER ROSE:  And include --


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  And direct staff to --


COMMISSIONER BOSCO:  Oh.  I thought she just -- I thought we were supposed to do that in two separate motions.


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  Let’s just do it in one.


COMMISSIONER BOSCO:  And direct the staff to prepare a Statement as to the Basis that we will consider at a future time.


COMMISSIONER ROSE:  Second.


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  Call the roll.


MS. BANE:  Commissioner Cremins.


COMMISSIONER CREMINS:  Aye.


MS. BANE:  Commissioner Rose.


COMMISSIONER ROSE:  Aye.


MS. BANE:  Chairman Dombrowski.


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  Aye.


MS. BANE:  Commissioner Bosco.


COMMISSIONER BOSCO:  Aye.


MS. BANE:  The amendment has been approved, the amendments to the wage order.


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  Is there any new business?


(No response)


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  Do I have a motion to adjourn?


COMMISSIONER CREMINS:  Second.


COMMISSIONER DOMBROWSKI:  I guess I just made the motion.


We’re adjourned.


(Thereupon, at 10:59 a.m., the public


meeting was adjourned.)

--o0o--

CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER/TRANSCRIBER

--o0o--


I, Cynthia M. Judy, a duly designated reporter and transcriber, do hereby declare and certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that I transcribed the tape recorded at the Public Hearing and Meeting of the Industrial Welfare Commission, held on October 17, 2003, in Sacramento, California, and that the foregoing pages constitute a true, accurate, and complete transcription of the aforementioned tape, to the best of my ability.

Dated:  October 18, 2003

______________________________






CYNTHIA M. JUDY






Reporter/Transcriber

GOLDEN STATE REPORTING

(831) 663-8851
PAGE  
GOLDEN STATE REPORTING

(831) 663-8851

